
NOTICE OF A MEETING 

(In compliance with Sec. 551.041, Et. Seq., Tex. Gov’t. Code) 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Jersey Village Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2 

(TIRZ) Board will hold a meeting on January 21, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the Civic Center Meeting 

Room, 16327 Lakeview Drive, Jersey Village, Texas  77040.  The City of Jersey Village TIRZ 

reserves the right to meet in closed session on any agenda item should the need arise and if 

applicable pursuant to authorization by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 

A quorum of the City of Jersey Village City Council may be in attendance at this meeting. 
 

ITEM(S) to be discussed and acted upon by the Commission are listed on the attached agenda. 

 

AGENDA 
 

A. Open Meeting.  Call the meeting to order and the roll of appointed officers will be taken.  Lorri 

Coody, Board Secretary  
 

B. Election of chairperson and vice-chairperson.  Lorri Coody, Board Secretary 

 

C. Consider approval of the minutes for the meetings held on November 29, 2017 and February 

1, 2018.  Lorri Coody, Board Secretary 

 

D. Consider Resolution No. 2019-01, approving and recommending the FY2018 Annual Report 

to the City Council.  Austin Bleess, City Manager 
 

E. Adjourn 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify in accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act, the Agenda is posted for public 

information, at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board located at City 

Hall, 16327 Lakeview, Jersey Village, TX 77040, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and 

said Notice was posted on the following date and time:  January 15, 2019 at 9:15 a.m. and remained so posted until said meeting 

9was convened. 
 

________________________________ 

Lorri Coody, City Secretary 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Jersey Village will provide for reasonable accommodations 

for persons attending public meetings.  Request for accommodations must be made to the City Secretary by calling 713 466-2102 

forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meetings.  Agendas are posted on the Internet Website at www.jerseyvillage.info.   

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

1



TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 2 BOARD 

CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS 

AGENDA REQUEST 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: January 21, 2019 

 

AGENDA ITEM:     B 

 

AGENDA SUBJECT:   Election of chairperson and vice-chairperson. 

 

Department/Prepared By:  Lorri Coody 

    

Date Submitted: December 19, 2018 

 

EXHIBITS: None 

 

BUDGETARY IMPACT: None 

  

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 

In accordance Ordinance 2017-26, each year the Board shall elect one of its members to serve as 

Chairman for a term of one year that begins on January 1.  The Board of Directors may elect a 

Vice-Chairman to preside in the absence of the Chairman or when there is a vacancy in the office 

of Chairman. 
 

Staff recommends that the Board elect both a Chairman and a Vice Chairman.   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Elect Officers 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

2



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 2 BOARD 

November 29, 2017 – 6:00 p.m. 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 2 BOARD OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, 

TEXAS, CONVENED ON NOVEMBER 29, 2017 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE CIVIC CENTER MEETING 

ROOM, 16327 LAKEVIEW DRIVE, JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS. 

A. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by City Secretary, Lorri Coody, and the roll of

appointed officers was taken.  Board Members and staff present were:

James Travis Singleton, Jr. City Manager, Austin Bleess

Ty Camp City Secretary, Lorri Coody

Ceri Davies

Geoff Butler

James MacDonald

Simon Hughes

David Ambrose

B. Election of chairperson and vice-chairperson.

City Secretary, Lorri Coody, opened nominations for the office of Chairperson for a one year term

beginning November 29, 2017 and ending December 31, 2018.  Board Member Camp nominated Board

Member James Singleton to serve in this capacity.  Board Member Hughes nominated Board Member

David Ambrose.  With no other nominations, City Secretary Coody called for a vote on the nomination

of Board Member James Singleton to serve as Chairperson.  The vote follows:

Ayes:   Board Members Camp, Davies, Butler, and McDonald 

Nays:   Board Member Hughes 

Abstained: Board Members Singleton and Ambrose 

City Secretary Coody then called for a vote on the nomination of Board Member David Ambrose to 

serve as Chairperson.  The vote follows: 

Ayes:   Board Member Hughes 

Nays:   Board Members Camp, Davies, Butler, and McDonald 

Abstained: Board Members Singleton and Ambrose 

James Travis Singleton, Jr. will serve as Chairperson for the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2 

Board for the term to begin on November 29, 2017 and end December 31, 2018. 

City Secretary Coody opened nominations for the office of Vice Chairperson for a one year term 

beginning November 29, 2017 and ending December 31, 2018.  Board Member Singleton nominated 

Board Member David Ambrose.  With no other nominations, City Secretary Coody called for a vote on 

the nomination of Board Member David Ambrose to serve as Vice Chairperson.  The vote follows: 

Ayes:   Board Members Camp, Davies, Butler, Singleton, Hughes and McDonald 

Nays:   None 

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

3



 

 Abstained: Board Member Ambrose 
 

David Ambrose will serve as Vice Chairperson for the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 2 Board 

for the term to begin on November 29, 2017 and end December 31, 2018. 
 

Having conducted the election of officers, Chairperson Singleton called the next item on the agenda as 

follows: 
 

C. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning TIRZ Board responsibilities and duties.   
 

Austin Bleess, City Manager, introduced the item.  He thanked the members for taking time to serve on 

this Board.   
 

Background information concerning the TIRZ Board responsibilities and duties is as follows:  The TIRZ 

is something that was listed as a large priority in the Comprehensive Planning Process that took place 

in 2015-2016.  
 

The TIRZ is comprised of the area that had previously been designated and zoned for Jersey Village 

Crossing.  Jersey Village Crossing is a proposed high density mixed-use development for the area along 

Jones Road south of US HWY 290.  The main goal of the TIRZ Board is to help direct the growth and 

development to achieve this vision.  
 

The TIRZ Board is made up of seven members.  Four members have terms expiring on December 31, 

2018, and three have terms expiring December 31, 2017.  For those whose terms that expire this year 

we will recommend reappointment for the term starting January 1, 2018 and expiring December 31, 

2019.  
 

The responsibilities and duties of the Board are prescribed in City Ordinance and state law. The 

information from the ordinance is as follows: 
 

Duties 
 

(a) The Board shall act as an advisory board to the city council in the operation and administration of 

Zone Number 2; all action by the board is subject to city council approval. The authority and 

responsibility of the board expressly includes: 

1. Make recommendations to the city council regarding the administration of the Zone.  

2. Make recommendations to the city council regarding agreements that are necessary or 

convenient to implement the project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan.  

3. Make recommendations to the city council regarding agreements with local governments or 

political subdivisions for management of the zone or implementing the project plan and 

reinvestment zone financing plan.  

4. Make recommendations to the city council regarding the expenditure of TIF Fund Number 2 

funds related to development and redevelopment of land within the zone, in conformance with 

the following process.  

5. Acting as the lead entity in working with other boards and commissions regarding incentives, 

regulations, infrastructure, and all other physical and economic development decisions related 

to the Zone number 2.  

6. Providing a progress report to the city council annually, or as requested by the city council.  
 

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

4



Officers 
 

(a) Each year the Board shall elect one of its members to serve as Chairman for a term of one year that 

begins on January 1 of the following year.  The board of directors may elect a Vice-Chairman to 

preside in the absence of the Chairman or when there is a vacancy in the office of Chairman.  The 

board may elect other officers as it considers appropriate. 
 

Bylaws 
 

(a) The board may write its own bylaws establishing its own rules for its regulation. Said bylaws and 

amendments thereto shall be filed with the City Secretary.  
 

Meetings 
 

(a) The board shall hold at least one regular meeting per quarter. These meetings shall be open to the 

public and at a time and place of their choosing. It may also hold such other meetings as may be 

necessary to accomplish the purpose of its creation. All meetings shall be public and shall conform 

to law.  

(b) All members including the chairperson shall vote in matters considered by the commission. 
 

Minutes 
 

(a) The board shall keep a record of its proceedings in a permanent book, and a signed copy of the 

minutes shall be given to the City Secretary.  
 

By state law the board must prepare and adopt a project plan and a reinvestment zone financing plan 

for the zone and submit the plans to the city council. 
 

The project plan must include: 
 

1. A description and map showing existing uses and conditions of real property in the zone and 

proposed uses of that property; 

2. Proposed changes of zoning ordinances, the master plan of the municipality, building codes, 

other municipal ordinances, and subdivision rules and regulations, if any, of the county, if 

applicable; 

3. A list of estimated non-project costs; and 

4. A statement of a method of relocating persons to be displaced, if any, as a result of implementing 

the plan. 
 

The reinvestment zone financing plan must include: 
 

1. A detailed list describing the estimated project costs of the zone, including administrative 

expenses; 

2. A statement listing the proposed kind, number, and location of all public works or public 

improvements to be financed by the zone; 

3. A finding that the plan is economically feasible and an economic feasibility study; 

4. The estimated amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred; 

5. The estimated time when related costs or monetary obligations are to be incurred; 

6. A description of the methods of financing all estimated project costs and the expected sources 

of revenue to finance or pay project costs, including the percentage of tax increment to be 

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

5



derived from the property taxes of each taxing unit anticipated to contribute tax increment to the 

zone that levies taxes on real property in the zone; 

7. The current total appraised value of taxable real property in the zone; 

8. The estimated captured appraised value of the zone during each year of its existence; and 

9. The duration of the zone. 
 

The governing body of the municipality or county that designated the zone must approve a project plan 

or reinvestment zone financing plan after its adoption by the board.  The approval must be by ordinance, 

in the case of a municipality, or by order, in the case of a county, that finds that the plan is feasible. 
 

The board of directors of the zone at any time may adopt an amendment to the project plan consistent 

with the requirements and limitations of this chapter.  The amendment takes effect on approval by the 

governing body of the municipality or county that created the zone.  That approval must be by ordinance, 

in the case of a municipality, or by order, in the case of a county. 
 

Some of the state law that is most pertinent to the TIRZ Board was included in the meeting packet.  

For more information on the Tax Increment Finance Act visit:  
 

 http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.311.htm 
 

In completing the introduction, City Manager Bleess opened the floor for questions concerning the 

duties and responsibilities of the TIRZ Board.  The Board engaged in discussion about adopting By-

Laws.  Some wondered if it was common practice to have By-Laws for Boards in the City.  City 

Manager Bleess explained that it was not common in Jersey Village; however, if members are interested 

in reviewing examples from other boards, Midtown in Houston may be a good place to start. 
 

The Board asked about the concept of the TIRZ and its goal.  City Manager Bleess explained that the 

ultimate goal is to see high density, mix-use development on the south side of US HWY 290 much like 

City Centre in Sugar Land.  The TIRZ will assist in achieving development in this manner.  The Board 

is to help in the process.  If development requires financing, the Board will assist in that process as well.  

The City Manager pointed out that the make-up of this Board is very diverse with much experience in 

many areas, which will help in achieving this type of development. 
 

Some members of the Board wondered if the City would hire a consultant to develop the project plan 

and the financing plan.  City Manager Bleess stated that he has put together these plans for review by 

the Board and that the City does not anticipate hiring a Consultant for this service. 
 

The Board discussed the steps taken by the City to contact developers interested in these type projects.  

City Manager Bleess explained that he has reached out to a large number of developers and has had 

conversations with a handful with some of those conversations on-going.  With this in mind, some 

members wondered how the development process will work.  City Manager Bleess explained that the 

process will begin with developers meeting with staff in order to present their ideas/concepts for 

development.  If their concept meets the parameters set out for the TIRZ area, the developers will 

prepare a presentation for the Board.  In receiving this presentation, the Board will discuss the concept 

presented and make recommendations of approval or disapproval to City Council concerning same.  The 

Board will meet quarterly to oversee these activities. 
 

Some members wanted to know the City Manager’s thoughts on the City’s plan for this development 

over the next year.  The members wanted to know what land is planned for development, who owns 

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

6

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.311.htm


that land, what land is for sale in the TIRZ area, and how will this all work.  City Manager Bleess 

explained that the easiest way to begin development is for a developer to come in and purchase the land; 

however, if the City needs to purchase some land for the development, that will be discussed by the 

Board.  In connection with this, the Board wanted to know if the City works with more than one 

developer.  City Manager Bleess explained how each TIRZ is set-up differently.  Our zone has three to 

four different layers that make up the TIRZ Plan.  With this in mind, it will be best that the City works 

with one developer that specializes in all areas of our zone.  It is possible to have several developers 

come in and complete their area of expertise, but this complicates the process. 
 

Given that the area that makes up the TIRZ was once a Transit Oriented Development (TOD), some 

members of the Board wondered if the area would still be a TOD.  City Manager Bleess explained that 

the transit may not be an option now, but perhaps in the future.  However, the plan does not require 

transit to be successful.  Light rail is coming to the area, but has no time line.  With this in mind, light 

rail and transit can be planned for in the future, but it is not required to develop the area. 
 

Discussion was had about construction of a toll road on Hempstead Highway.  This construction was 

initially part of the equation when US HWY 290 construction was first discussed, but was later separated 

from the US HWY 290 project due to funding.   
 

There was discussion that the Northwest Park and Ride could be seen as a form of transit for the area 

and should be considered. 
 

The Board discussed the process for rezoning the TIRZ area to mixed-use since some of the area is 

zoned industrial.  City Manager Bleess explained that currently there are seven parcels of land in the 

area for sale.  So as this land develops and expands the market will drive the expansion and of the TIRZ 

as mixed-use.  This led to discussion of businesses in the area that may not want to move. 
 

The map on page 24 of the meeting packet was discussed.  City Manager Bleess explained the map and 

the color codes for the various sections were discussed.  This led to a discussion about the process for 

funding streets.  City Manager Bleess explained that funding will be dependent upon the type of project 

proposed.   
 

With no further discussion on Item C, Chairperson Singleton called the next item on the agenda as 

follows: 
 

D. Discuss and take appropriate action on a project plan and a reinvestment zone financing plan.  
 

Austin Bleess, City Manager, introduced the item.  Background information is as follows:  In creating 

the TIRZ district in July, Council was required to approve a preliminary financial plan.  The approved 

plan was developed by Staff and was included in your meeting packet as a proposed plan for moving 

forward.  This item is to discuss and take possible action on a project plan and a reinvestment zone 

financing plan for the TIRZ zone.  In discussing this item, there are several things that are required to 

be in the plan, as mentioned in the introduction given in the previous item.   In addition, there are a few 

things to note as we move forward. 
 

Harris County has opted not to participate in the TIRZ.  So there will be no captured value from them. 

For the amount of captured value, we only assumed a 1% appreciation rate of the District.  From 2010 

– 2017 commercial values in Jersey Village have likely averaged a higher increase than that. 
DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

7



Commercial property as a whole in Jersey Village has increased on average 5% each year from 2010 – 

2017.  
 

A lot of this land is not currently within the city boundaries, but is in our ETJ.  We do not collect 

property taxes on property in our ETJ.  However, as this area grows, we do anticipate annexing this land 

and providing the necessary services that go along with it.   
 

As the land is not all within the current city limits, we should consider modifying the expense years that 

are being proposed.  The Plan as a whole is a guideline, it is not set in stone.  It is supposed to be the 

guiding document for how things generally develop, it is not something that ties our hands saying how 

everything must be done and in what order.  
 

At this point in time it may be easiest to review the proposed plan and answer any questions the Board 

might have as we go.  We can discuss the plan tonight, and the Board can suggest changes, edits, etc. 

The Board needs to recommend the plan to the City Council for approval.  That does not have to be 

done tonight, but we should target to have this completed and the Council approving it by March at the 

latest.  
 

The Board continued its discussion about development in the ETJ.  Once this land is developed, and if 

it is not annexed, the City will not get any tax dollars on this property.  With this in mind, some Members 

wondered if annexation should come before development.  City Manager Bleess explained that City 

Staff is looking at the annexation process.  There were recent changes to this process during the 2017 

Texas Legislature.  Keeping these changes in mind, it will be easier to annex the land into the City limits 

if all the property was owned by one owner.   
 

Discussion was had about Harris County’s decision not to participate even though they stand to benefit 

from the TIRZ.  Some wondered if anything else could be done to bring them to the table.  City Manager 

Bleess explained that we have reached out to Commissioner Cagle and they are not interested.     
 

Discussion continued about annexation.  If the City were to annex the property now, we would have to 

provide services.  With this in mind, it might be better to wait. 
 

The Board reviewed the information included on page 30 of the meeting packet concerning assessed 

value and proposed taxes for the TIRZ over the course of the next 30 years.  City Manager Bleess 

explained that the TOD Plan proposed the buildout of this area in three phases and the numbers 

presented on page 30 reflect a three phase buildout.   
 

The Board discussed access roads to the TIRZ.  The main accesses to the TIRZ will be from US HWY 

290 near Sparkle Signs and on Jones Road.  These access roads are well defined and will not change. 
 

The Board discussed the projects listed on Pages 26 and 27 as well as the impact fees to be collected.  

City Manager Bleess explained that these projects will only be completed when we have an approved 

development plan.  With the completion of US HWY 290 in sight, there is increased interest in this 

area, especially with the creation of the TIRZ and the City’s efforts to promote economic development. 
 

The Board discussed revenues that will come with development of the TIRZ.  City Manager Bleess 

explained that there will be no property tax revenue, but the City will see sales tax revenues as well as 

revenues from water and sewer, HOT taxes, and impact fees.  The Crime Control and Prevention District 

sales tax is not reduced.  So, if we develop as planned, in three to four years, we would get $2 to $3 

million in additional revenue.  This would be in addition to paying off the construction debt. 

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

8



 

Next the Board discussed the potential downsides to the TIRZ development.  City Manager Bleess 

explained that the worst case would be that no developer commits to develop the area and the land gets 

developed without the TIRZ.  In this scenario, no dollars are expended so the financial loss is minimal. 
 

The Board discussed the incentives and if developers have been made aware of same.  City Manager 

Bleess explained that we have general guidelines that have been approved for economic development 

by the City Council back in June, which he explained to the Board.  These guidelines are posted on the 

City’s website and are public.   
 

Grants were discussed by the Board.  City Manager Bleess gave a scenario on how grants might work.  

He explained that a developer wants a $25 to $30 million development.  The City could off-set this by 

$5 million and over the next several years at various benchmarks.  Grants would offset some of the 

development costs.  In this scenario, if the developer fails in development commitments, the City would 

be out its investment. 
 

The Board discussed modeling of the area for flooding.  City Manager Bleess pointed out that the Long 

Term Flood Recovery Study makes some recommendations for this area. 
 

The Board then discussed connecting the heart of Jersey Village to the TIRZ development with cycle 

passage ways or subways, etc.  Current connections are FM 529 and Jones Road.  US HWY 290 is a 

barrier, but depending upon developer, most are not concerned.  There was also discussion about the 

railroad tracks.  City Manager Bleess told the Board that reputable developers do not see this as a 

concern. 
 

The Board discussed the approval of the project and financial plan tonight.  City Manager Bleess 

explained that the plans can be adopted and amended later as needed.  Some felt the plan needed to have 

more information.  City Manager Bleess explained that without a plan, the City cannot spend any money 

on this development.  The goal is to have an approved plan in place by March, 2018.  The plan is a 

message to potential developers of what we have in mind and that we are open for discussion concerning 

development of the area.  The plan does not commit anything and it can change accordingly.   
 

It was the consensus of the Board to consider approval of the project plan and financial plan at a later 

meeting.   
 

E. Adjourn 
 

There being no further business on the Agenda the meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

 
 

         ______________________________ 

Lorri Coody, City Secretary  DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

9



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JERSEY VILLAGE 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 2 BOARD 

February 1, 2018 – 6:00 p.m. 

TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NO. 2 BOARD OF THE CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, 

TEXAS, CONVENED ON FEBRUARY 1, 2018 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE CIVIC CENTER MEETING 

ROOM, 16327 LAKEVIEW DRIVE, JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS. 

A. The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Board Chairman, James Travis Singleton, Jr.,

and the roll of appointed officers was taken.  Board Members and staff present were:

James Travis Singleton, Jr., Chairman City Manager, Austin Bleess

Ty Camp, Board Member City Secretary, Lorri Coody

Ceri Davies, Board Member

James MacDonald, Board Member

Simon Hughes, Board Member

Board Members David Ambrose and Geoff Butler were not present at this meeting.

B. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning Board Bylaws.

Austin Bleess, City Manager, introduced the item.  Background information is as follows:

At the last meeting there was a brief discussion on Board bylaws.  Prior to this evenings meeting, Board

Members were presented with several examples of TIRZ bylaws from around the State.

In reviewing the bylaws, most were simply a reiteration of what is already in the City Ordinance that

created the TIRZ. As such the City Manager does not believe that Bylaws are necessary, and does not

recommend adopting bylaws for this Board.  However, should the Board wishes to have bylaws, this

item is to discuss the Boards wishes concerning same.

After a brief discussion concerning the information presented by the City Manager, it was the consensus

of the Board that bylaws are not needed.  With no further discussion on the matter, Chairman Singleton

called the next item on the agenda as follows:

C. Consider Resolution No. 2018-01, approving and recommending the Final Reinvestment Zone

Project Plan and Financing Plan to the City Council.

Austin Bleess, City Manager, introduced the item.  He told the Board that tonight the Board will consider

the proposed Project and Financing Plan for the TIRZ. He mentioned that there are a few changes in the

plan that was included in the meeting packet compared to the preliminary plan presented at the last

meeting.   The changes are as follows:

1) Figure 2 has been added, which shows the Jersey Village Crossing Character Zones. This addition

helps better display the zones for Map 4.

2) The non-project costs sections has been updated with a bit more information.

3) The Method of Relocation Statement has been changed. After consulting with our attorney,

relocation is only for people, not businesses or utilities. There are only four parcels in the Zone

that are residential in nature. They are all located in the District D Transition Zone, which means

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

10



they could stay. If people need to be relocated, $2 million has been allocated for that; and it would 

be done in accordance with the applicable requirements.  
 

4) The calculation on TIRZ Values has been modified. Since we only have approximately $18 

million of the total TIRZ property values currently in our City limits that drops the base value of 

the TIRZ. We are proposing those values to be added by annexation in 2019. Therefore, that 

changes our projected annual assessed values and the incremental taxes collected. It increases the 

total amount by about $11 million.  
 

5) Changes to our projected annual assessed values and the incremental taxes collected, changes the 

proposed budget. Accordingly, various lines have been increased/decreased in the budget on page 

11 of the document, and more has been put into the infrastructure (water, sewer, streets, etc.).  
 

6) The TOD Plan, which was emailed to everyone in November, indicates the roads that are proposed 

in Map 4 that would be owned by the City. That question was brought up in our last meeting. The 

costs for those would be covered in our TIRZ budget. As noted on pages 10-11, I took the original 

costs and used an inflation factor of 4% to come up with the budget amounts in the preliminary 

budget. I have added some money to those numbers with the new budget. I think the budget is 

good, but of course you never truly know what the costs will be until the project is engineered and 

put out for bids.  
 

These are the main changes to the plan. Other changes were just small house keeping items.  Once again 

this is just a plan. We can change it as we go, and the plan could change depending upon what developer 

does the project.  
 

In completing the introduction by the City Manager, the Board engaged in discussion about the plan.  

There was some concern that the actual plan document does not indicate that changes/amendments can 

be made to the Plan.  City Manager Bleess explained that this is not necessary because the Ordinance 

creating the TIRZ outlines that capability. 
 

Some members wanted to know about the discussions that the City has had with developers for the 

TIRZ area to affirm that the dollar amounts in the plan are accurate.  The City Manager explained that 

the City is speaking with developers and these discussions are ongoing.  He explained that some 

developers are more interested than others are in developing this area.   
 

Some members wanted to know if the plan is approved tonight and a developer comes with an idea to 

develop the area, what will be the next steps in the process.  City Manager Bleess explained that once a 

developer presents the City with a proposal, Staff will review the proposal to understand the costs and 

needed in terms of infrastructure and if proceeding with the proposal is wise.  If so, the proposal will be 

presented to the TIRZ Board for review and for making a recommendation to City Council concerning 

the proposal.    
 

Some members wanted to know what will happen to residents living in the area if we receive a proposal 

from a developer.  City Manager Bleess explained that there are four (4) parcels in the TIRZ area.  If 

there are people living on the property, the developers will propose a plan to relocate the residents. 
 

There was discussion about approving the plan.  Some members wanted to know that in approving the 

plan is the Board/City committing dollars to spend.  City Manager Bleess explained that no monies will 

be spent until the developers come forward with a proposal that is approved by City Council.  The plan 

DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

11



does not commit the City to any dollars.  It is more for marketing purposes and will be amended when 

a developer’s proposal is presented. 
 

The Board then discussed the zoning for the City’s ETJ.  City Manager Bleess explained that upon 

receiving a proposal, any land to be developed in the ETJ will be rezoned when it comes into the City. 
 

The Board discussed residential housing units as some wanted to know if there will be a requirement 

for low-income housing.  City Manager Bleess explained that should the City consider Community 

Block Development Grants (CBDG), then perhaps; but the current plan does not include these grants as 

a source of funding. 
 

This is a thirty-year plan.  Some members wanted to know if the plan could be terminated sooner than 

thirty years.  City Manager Bleess stated that the City Council has the authority to terminate the plan 

early. 
 

The $17 million in interest outlined in the plan was discussed.  City Manager Bleess explained how this 

number was calculated as well as the figures in the table on page 11. 
 

It was noted that the plan does not have Sales Tax Revenues, impact fee revenues, or water and sewer 

fee revenue.  All of these will go back to the general fund. 
 

With no further discussion on the matter, Chairman Singleton moved to approve Resolution No. 2018-

01, approving and recommending the Final Reinvestment Zone Project Plan and Financing Plan to the 

City Council.   Board member Camp seconded the motion.  The vote follows: 
 

 Ayes:   Board Members Camp, Davies, McDonald 

  Chairman Singleton 
 

 Nays:   Board Member Hughes 
 

The motion carried. 
 

D. Adjourn 
 

There being no further business on the Agenda the meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 

 
 

         ______________________________ 

Lorri Coody, City Secretary  DRAFT
T

A
X

 IN
C

R
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 Z
O

N
E

 B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
 PA

C
K

E
T

 FO
R

 JA
N

U
A

R
Y

 21, 2019

12



TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE BOARD 
CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS 

AGENDA REQUEST 
 

AGENDA DATE: January 21, 2019  AGENDA ITEM:    D 
 
AGENDA SUBJECT:  Consider Resolution No. 2019-01, approving and recommending the 
FY2018 Annual Report to the City Council.  
 
PREPARED BY: Austin Bleess, City Manager DATE SUBMITTED: January 14, 2019 
 
EXHIBITS: Resolution No. 2019-01 
  Exhibit A – FY 2018 TIRZ Annual Report 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The Tax Increment Financing Act requires all cities or counties that designate a tax increment 
reinvestment zone to file an annual report with the Comptroller's office and the chief executive 
officer of each taxing unit that levies property taxes on real property in a reinvestment zone.  The 
report must include: 
 

• the amount and source of revenue in the tax increment fund established for the zone; 
• the amount and purpose of expenditures from the fund; 
• the amount of principal and interest due on outstanding bonded indebtedness; 
• the tax increment base and current captured appraised value retained by the zone; and 
• the captured appraised value shared by the municipality or county and other taxing units, 

the total amount of tax increments received, and any additional information necessary to 
demonstrate compliance with the tax increment financing plan adopted by the governing 
body of the municipality or county. 

 
As such staff has prepared the following report.  It’s recommended by staff that the TIRZ Board 
recommend Council approve this report.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  
Recommend the City Council Approve the FY 18 TIRZ Annual Report as attached. 
 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

13



 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR REINVESTMENT 
ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, TEXAS APPROVING 
AND RECOMMENDING THE FY2018 ANNUAL REPORT TO THE CITY 
COUNCIL. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Jersey Village, Texas is required to file an annual report 

with the Comptroller's office and the chief executive officer of each taxing unit that levies 
property taxes on real property in a reinvestment zone; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TIRZ Board of Directors has reviewed the FY2018 Annual 

Report; NOW THEREFORE,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR 

REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO CITY OF JERSEY VILLAGE, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. Finds the FY2018 Annual Report meets the requirements of laid out 
in the Tax Increment Financing Act. 

 
SECTION 2. The TIRZ Board hereby approves the FY2018 Annual Report, 

attached hereto as Exhibit A, and recommends approval of the report to the City Council.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of January, A.D., 2019. 
 
 
 
  

Board Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
  

Lorri Coody, City Secretary 
 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

14



EXHIBIT A 

 

FY2018 TIRZ Annual Report 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

16



  

 

TAX INCREMENT 

REINVESTMENT ZONE 

NUMBER 2, CITY OF 

JERSEY VILLAGE, TX 

ANNUAL REPORT 

FY2018 
 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY TIRZ 
BOARD ON JANUARY XX, 2019 
 
APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL ON JANUARY XX, 
2019 
Ordinance 2019-XX 

 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

17



City of Jersey Village, Texas - City Officials 
 

City Council 

Mayor Justin Ray 

Place 1 Andrew Mitcham 

Place 2 Greg Holden 

Place 3 Bobby Warren 

Place 4 James Singleton 

Place 5 Gary Wubbenhorst 
 

City Staff 

City Manager Austin Bleess 

City Secretary Lorri Coody 
 

TIRZ Board of Directors  

BOARD MEMBER       POSITION  APPOINT DATE  TERM ENDS 

James Singleton 1 08/17 Resigned 06/18 

Andrea Grimm  1  06/18 12/19 

Ty Camp  2  08/17  12/19 

Ceri Davies  3  08/17  12/18 

Geoff Butler  4  08/17  12/18 

James MacDonald  5  08/17  12/18 

Simon Hughes  6  10/17  12/19 

David Ambrose, Vice Chairman  7  10/17  12/18 

 

 

 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

18



Purpose 
The Board shall act as an advisory board to the City Council in the operation and administration of Zone 

Number 2; and all actions by the board are subject to City Council approval.  

Duties and Responsibilities 
The authority and responsibility of the board expressly includes: 

1. Make recommendations to the City Council regarding the administration of the Zone; 

2. Make recommendations to the City Council regarding agreements that are necessary or 

convenient to implement the project plan and reinvestment zone financing plan; 

3. Make recommendations to the City Council regarding agreements with local governments or 

political subdivisions for management of the zone or implementing the project plan and 

reinvestment zone financing plan; 

4. Make recommendations to the City Council regarding the expenditure of TIF Fund Number 2 

funds related to development and redevelopment of land within the zone, in conformance with 

the following process; 

5. Act as the lead entity in working with other boards and commissions regarding incentives, 

regulations, infrastructure, and all other physical and economic development decisions related 

to the Zone number 2; and 

6. Provide a progress report to the City Council annually, or as requested by the City Council. 

Membership 
This Board of Directors consists of seven (7) members:  five (5) Directors shall be appointed by the City 

Council; and two (2) Directors shall be appointed by the County Commissioners Court.  Since Harris 

County has elected not to participate in the TIRZ, all seven Director seats have been appointed by the 

City Council.  

Description of Zone 
In accordance with the Tax Increment Financing Act (Texas Tax Code Chapter 311), Reinvestment Zone 

Number Two, Jersey Village, Texas (TIRZ No. 2) was established by Ordinance 2017-26 of the Jersey 

Village City Council on July 17, 2017.  

Purpose of Zone 
The City of Jersey Village teamed with consultants to gather input from community stakeholders (from 

agencies like Harris County, the Houston-Galveston Area Council, METRO, and private land owners) and 

develop a conceptual plan for the area south of U.S. 290, known as Jersey Village Crossing. Jersey Village 

Crossing is a proposed 274 acre mixed-use development that includes a major Transit-Oriented 

Development component that incorporates preliminary designs for a light rail stop. Recent economic 

trends indicate that workers want to live in places with destinations, public and civic spaces, vibrant 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

19



social life, recreational opportunities, and a reasonable commute—all of which are usually included in a 

mixed-use development. 

The purpose of this TIRZ is to support this development.  

Financial State of the Zone 
Chapter 311.016 (a)(1) of the Texas Tax Code requires an annual status report be filed with the chief 

officer of each taxing unit that levies property taxes in a reinvestment zone and the state comptroller. 

The established base year for TIRZ No. 1 reporting was Fiscal Year 2018. 

Amount and Source of Revenue 
The Tax Increment Base Value of the District is $20,633,175. During Fiscal Year 2018 the value of the 

district was $20,538,222, which is a negative captured value of $94,953. As there was no captured value 

of the TIRZ there was no income for the TIRZ. 

Amount and Purpose of Expenditures 
There were no expenditures from the TIRZ Fund. 

Amount of Principal and Interest Due 
The TIRZ has no bonded indebtedness.  

Tax Increment Base and Current Captured Appraised Value Retained By the Zone 

Base Year 
Value (2017) 

Net Taxable 
Value (2018) 

 Captured 
Appraised 
Value (2018)  

$20,633,175 $20,538,222 -$94,953 

Captured Appraised Value Shared By the Municipality and the Total Amount of Tax 

Increments Received 

Taxing Jurisdiction & 
Participation Rate 

Captured 
Appraised 
Value 

Tax Rate per 
$100/Value 

 Amount of 
Increment  

Jersey Village (100%) -$94,953 0.7425  $                        -    
Currently Jersey Village is the only taxing entity participating in the TIRZ and is participating at 100%.  

Fund Balance History: 

  FY2018 

Revenues 0 

Expenditures 0 

Net Income (Loss) 0 

Ending Fund Balance 0 

 

 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

20



Map 1: Location of Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone 
The boundaries of the TIRZ are depicted below. 

 

T
A

X
 IN

C
R

E
M

E
N

T
 R

E
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 Z

O
N

E
 B

O
A

R
D

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 PA
C

K
E

T
 FO

R
 JA

N
U

A
R

Y
 21, 2019

21


	2019-01-21_TIRZ_Meeting_Agenda
	B - Agenda Request - Election and Appointment of Officers
	C - 2017-11-29_TIRZ_Minutes
	C - 2018-02-01_TIRZ_Minutes
	D - FY 2018 TIRZ Annual Report
	Agenda Request - Annual Report
	Resolution No. 2019-01 - Annual Report
	Exhibit A TIRZ Annual Report FY18






